1979

# William Andrews v. Lawrence Morris : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

This case is an appeal from an order of the Third Judicial District Court, Hon. James S. Sawaya, dismissing Appellant's Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus, which claimed that Appellant was confined under a sentence of death imposed in violation of the Constitution of the United States.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Court below granted Respondent's Motion to Dismiss the Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus without argument or a hearing, and denied Petitioner's Motion for a Stay of Execution pending a hearing on his Writ.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks to have this Court reverse the District Court's order dismissing his Petition for a Writ

of Habeas Corpus without a hearing and to remand the case to the District Court for further proceedings in which Appellant would have the opportunity to present arguments and evidence in support of his constitutional claims, and to grant a stay of execution pending completion of those proceedings.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

On October 2, 1978, the Supreme Court of the United States declined to review this Court's affirmance of the death sentence imposed on Appellant William Andrews. On November 3, 1978, the Second Judicial District Court of Utah entered an order resentencing Appellant to be executed on December 7, 1978.

On November 16, 1978, a Petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus, and an Application for Stay of Execution pending a hearing on that Petition, was filed on Appellant's behalf in the Third Judicial District Court of Salt Lake County. On November 24, 1978, Respondent filed a Motion to Dismiss that Petition. That motion was not received by counsel for Appellant until November 27, 1978--at the same time Appellant's counsel informed Respondent that Appellant would be filing an amended petition for habeas corpus. On November 28, 1978, that amended petition was filed and served. On November 29, 1978, both parties appeared before the Hon. James S. Sawaya for a hearing on Appellant's motion; at that time Respondent indicated



it had no objection to Appellant's filing of the Amended Petition, and Appellant agreed that Respondent's motion to dismiss previously filed could be deemed a response to the Amended Petition. At the same time, counsel for Respondent for the first time indicated that they would ask to have their motion to dismiss brought on immediately. By order of the Court, the entire matter was set over until November 30, 1978, the next day.

Also on November 29, 1978, in hearing on the same calendar, a Motion for Stay was heard and granted by Judge Sawaya in a similar capital case, Dunsdon v. Morris, No. 78-7012. In that case an evidentiary hearing was asked for and scheduled on one of the exact issues raised by Appellant's Petition: the pattern of arbitrariness and discrimination in death sentencing under the present Utah law. No motion to dismiss was made in that case by Respondent; instead, the parties there agreed to a hearing on the question and set a discovery schedule pending that hearing.

On November 30, 1978, the parties in this case again appeared before Judge Sawaya for a hearing on the motions. At that hearing Respondent began by arguing that the Petition should be dismissed because it did not raise "a single significant fact or case which was not known or should have been known . . . on October the 2nd, 1978 when

the United States Supreme Court denied the Petition for Cert in this case." Trans. 11/30/78 at 4. Respondent urged that unless Appellant's counsel could "point out what significant facts and what significant law has occurred from the time that the Amended Appellant's Briefs were filed in the Utah Supreme Court" the Petition should be summarily dismissed without a hearing on its merits. Id. at 4-5. In response, counsel for Appellant sought to point out to the Court that "there are significant new developments of fact or law which have occurred since the taking of the appeal in this case" which required a hearing. Id. at 6. Counsel cited four United States Supreme Court decisions, and two cases pending before the Court, which significantly affected the issues raised by these Petitions and which had never been considered by the Utah Courts. Id. at 6-8. Appellant's counsel further pointed out to the Court certain factual matters which could not have been presented and raised during his trial and direct appeal: the actual prejudicial impact on the jurors of publicity surrounding his case and communications to the jurors during trial; and the pattern of death sentencing that had emerged since William Andrews' trial which showed his sentence to have been imposed arbitrarily and discriminatorily. Id. at 9-12. Counsel concluded that, because of these new developments of law and fact which

could not have been injected into the direct appeal process, the issues raised by this Petition could not properly be deemed determined by dispositions in the direct appeal process. Ibid. Counsel specifically pointed out that the direct appeal process was limited to its own record (Id. at 27), and alleged that at an evidentiary they could show discrimination in the application of the Utah death penalty law which could not have been established at any earlier time (Id. at 17).

After hearing this argument, and without taking evidence or bringing the trial record before him, Judge Sawaya dismissed the Petition and denied the stay of execution. See Order of November 30, 1978. Three days later he entered findings and conclusions on that order, holding that "no developments of fact or law material to the determination of the legality or constitutionality of the conviction and sentence of the Petitioner herein have occurred since the filing of Petitioner's direct appeal to the Utah Supreme Court," that "[a]ll the issues regarding the constitutionality of the processes for death sentencing under Utah law . . . and the affect of any alleged prejudicial publicity or influences on Petitioner's trial" were "raised in his direct appeal" "or could have been raised," and that "Petitioner's claim that Utah's death penalty law has been applied arbitrarily and discriminatorily fails to state a claim on which relief could be granted or on which

a hearing need be held . . . ." Findings and Conclusions at 1. From those rulings Appellant appealed to this Court, and on December 4, 1978, was granted a stay of execution pending this appeal.

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

THE CONSTITUTION AND THE RULES OF THIS COURT REQUIRE THAT POST CONVICTION RELIEF BE AVAILABLE TO PERSONS CONFINED UNDER SENTENCES IMPOSED IN VIOLATION OF THE CONSTITUTION.

In Case v. Nebraska, 381 U.S. 336 (1965), the Supreme Court suggested, but did not decide, that "the Fourteenth Amendment requires that the States afford State prisoners some adequate corrective process for the hearing and determination of claims of violation of federal constitutional guarantees." 381 U.S. at 337. Concurring Justices of the Court noted that its previous decisions "articulated the principle that the States must afford prisoners some 'clearly defined method by which they may raise claims of denial of federal rights.'" Ibid. (concurring opinion of Justice Clark), quoting Young v. Ragen, 337 U.S. 235, 239 (1949). They pointed out the

desirable attributes of a State post-conviction procedure should reduce the necessity for exercise of federal habeas corpus jurisdiction. The procedure should be swift and simple and easily invoked. It should be sufficiently comprehensive to embrace all federal constitutional claims. In light of Fay v. Noia, (372 U.S. 391 (1963)) . . . it should eschew rigid and technical doctrines of forfeiture, waiver or default. . . it should provide for full fact hearings to resolve disputed factual issues, and for compilation of the record to allow federal courts to determine the sufficiency of those hearings . . . it should provide for decisions supported by opinions or fact findings and conclusions of law, which disclose the grounds of decision and the resolution of disputed facts.

Case v. Nebraska, supra at 381 U.S. 346-347 (concurring opinion of Justice Brennan) (citations and footnotes omitted. The Justices emphasized that the availability of such procedures "will stop the rising conflict presently being generated between federal and state courts." Id. at 381 U.S. 340 (Justice Clark), 344-346 (Justice Brennan).

In 1969 this Court adopted Rule 65B(i) which provides, in part, that

Any person imprisoned in the penitentiary or county jail under a commitment of any court whether such imprisonment be under an original commitment or under a commitment for violation of probation or parole, who asserts that in any proceedings which resulted in his commitment there was a substantial denial of his rights under the Constitution of the United States or of the State of Utah, or both, may institute a proceeding under this rule.

This rule on its face creates the kind of post conviction relief in the state courts the Supreme Court said was desirable in Case. It places no conditions on the right to bring the action it creates, except to require that "All claims of the denial of any of the complainant's constitutional rights shall be raised in the post conviction proceeding brought under this rule. . ." URCP 65B(i) (4). It permits the petitioned court to dismiss a complaint challenging the constitutionality of a commitment which has "already been adjudged in a prior habeas corpus or other similar proceeding;" but makes no provision for dismissal

pleaded complaint. URCP 65B(i) (2). In short, the Rule entitles a person confined in alleged violation of the constitution to challenge his confinement through a single comprehensive petition raising his claimed right to be free.

This does not mean that a prisoner may relitigate through post conviction proceedings the self same issues decided against him in his direct appeal, or that criminal defendants may bypass issues in appealing their convictions and hold them in reserve for post conviction proceedings. In criminal cases as in all matters,

The rule of law is wise in that it gives finality to judgments and also conserves the time of courts, in that courts should not be required to relitigate matters which have once been fully and finally determined.

Richardson v. Hodson, 26 Utah 2d 113, 485 P.2d 1044, 1046 (1971). And litigants in criminal cases as in all others, may intentionally waive and abandon a claim of constitutional right, and be barred from raising it again.

If a habeas applicant, after consultation with competent counsel or otherwise, understandingly and knowingly forewent the privilege of seeking to vindicate his federal claims in the state courts, whether for strategic, tactical, or any other reasons that could fairly be described as the deliberate by-passing of state procedures,

he may be held to have waived his rights and precluded from raising them in collateral attacks. Fay v. Noia, 372 U.S. 391, 439, (1963). But absent such a prior adjudication or deliberate waiver, neither the rules governing post conviction

1

relief not the principle of collateral estoppel governing serial litigations preclude a Utah prisoner from applying for relief from alleged unconstitutional confinement.

Dicta in this Court's decisions since the passage of Rule 65B(i) have properly emphasized "the error of attempting to use such a writ as a substitute for the prescribed appeal procedure." Rammell v. Smith, 560 P.2d 1108, 1109 (1977). But the Court has not curtailed the availability of the writ "where the requirements of the law have been so ignored or distorted that the party is substantially and effectively denied what is included in the term due process of law." Bryant v. Turner, 19 Utah 2d 284, 431 P.2d 121, 122-123 (1967). It has noted its awareness of the expanding concepts of due process and the availability of habeas corpus. (See id. at 123 n.5) And though it has continued to caution against the use of habeas corpus proceedings to raise issues that could be raised on direct appeal, both this court and the lower courts it has affirmed have nonetheless reached the merits even of issues that clearly could have been raised on appeal where they are of constitutional dimension. See, eg., Rammell v. Smith, supra;

---

<sup>1</sup>The rule of collateral estoppel governs "situations like this wherein issues which are actually decided against a party in prior action may be relied upon by an opponent in a later case as having been judicially established." Richardson v. Hodson, supra at 485 P.2d 1046. "The estoppel applies only to issues actually litigated and not to those which could have been determined." Ibid.



Horne v. Turner, 29 Utah 2d 175, 506 P.2d 1268 (1973);

Zumbrunnen v. Turner, 27 Utah 2d 428, 497 P.2d 34, 35 (1972).

It has held that where "there has been such unfairness or failure to accord due process that it would be wholly unconscionable not to re-examine the conviction" habeas corpus will lie.

Webster v. Jones, 587 P.2d 528, 530 (Utah 1978).

Appellant submits that where, as here, a man is being sent to die and claiming he was not given a fair trial and was denied his constitutional rights, it would be unconscionable not to examine the merit of his claims.

Moreover, it would be unjustifiable. To hold, as the District Courts did in this case, that the possibility that an issue could have previously been raised on appeal absolutely and finally bars its assertion on habeas corpus, would be to ignore the plain provisions of URCP 65B(i), to leave prisoners confined in violation of constitutional rights they have not waived without a state remedy, and to force them into federal court without even a hearing in a court in Utah. No purpose could possibly be served by such an absolute and inflexible bar. The state's interest in finality of judgments is fully satisfied by this Court's rule permitting and requiring constitutional challenges to confinement to be raised in a single post conviction petition. Rule 65B(i) (4). Judicial efficiency is protected by the rule of collateral estoppel, which forecloses the raising of issues previously adjudicated in a case involving a party raising them. See Richardson v. Hodson, supra. But

expansion of that rule to declare waived and bar from Utah courts any constitutional claim which conceivably could have been raised at the time of the appeal--whether or not the defendant there made any knowing waiver, whether or not the law or the facts on which the claim is based was known or established at the time--simply erases the remedy Rule 65B(i) provides, and forces prisoners to challenge their confinement, and the State to defend it, in federal court.

The District Court here erred in failing to determine which of Appellant's constitutional claims were new, whether any of them had been waived, and which of them were based on new facts or law not available at the time of his direct appeal. Its summary dismissal of this petition, forcing Appellant out of the Utah courts without a hearing on the facts or law he asserts, should be reversed.

## POINT II

A COURT CANNOT PROPERLY DETERMINE THAT AN ISSUE IS FORECLOSED BY A PRIOR DECISION WITHOUT FINDING FACTS AND HAVING THE ENTIRE RECORD OF PRIOR PROCEEDINGS BEFORE IT.

Rule 65B(i) (7) requires that prior to a hearing on a post conviction relief petition, "the State or County shall obtain such transcript of proceedings or court records as may be relevant or material to the case." In order to make a determination that the raising of an issue is foreclosed by the doctrine of res judicata, a trial court must have the entire record of the prior proceeding before it. See Parris v. Layton City Corp.

542 P.2d 1086 (Utah 1975). Such reference to the prior record is necessary because a determination that a matter is foreclosed by a prior decision requires a determination of fact; it cannot be made from the face of the pleadings before the court. For that reason, a motion claiming that one lawsuit should be dismissed because it is barred by the decision in another is not a motion under URCP 12(b) but a matter for summary judgment under Rule 56 since it requires examination of materials and facts beyond the pleadings. See Vance v. Heath, 42 Utah 148, 129 P. 365 (1912); Escalante Co. v. Kent, 79 Utah 26, 7 P.2d 276 (1932). Those matters must include the entire record of the prior proceeding, so that it can be determined exactly what was in fact decided there. Parrish v. Layton City Corp., supra.

Habeas corpus proceedings are civil, and are governed by the rules of civil procedure in Utah. URCP 65B(i)(6). It is one of the most basic rules of civil practice that, when a motion to dismiss raises "matters outside the pleading . . . the motion shall be treated as one for summary judgment and disposed of as provided in Rule 56." URCP 12(b)(6). It is error to deny the parties the opportunity to fully present evidence and contest the factual allegations on which the motion is based.

It is error to consider a motion to dismiss as a motion for summary judgment without giving the adverse party an opportunity to present pertinent material.

Strand v. Associated Students of Univ. of Utah, 561 P.2d 191, 193 (Utah 1977). It is error for a trial court to convert a

motion to dismiss into a motion for summary judgment or to  
provided by the U.S. GPO under a contract with the National Library of Medicine  
Library Services and Technology Act, administered by the Utah State Library.  
Machine-generated by OCR, may contain errors.

require the plaintiff to state "how he will establish his claim . . ." Hill v. Grand Central Inc. 25 Utah 2d 121, 477 P.2d 150, 151 (1970); see Harvey v. Sanders, 534 P.2d 905 (Utah 1975); Beacons Bar V Ranch v. Utah Farm Productions, 587 P.2d 151 (Utah 1978). And it is clear error for a court to make a factual determination concluding a case without having the pertinent evidentiary materials before it.

In this case the District Court made all these errors. It rejected that Appellant's specific allegation that the death penalty was being imposed on him for reasons not permissible under the Constitution (Trans. 11/30/78 at 28) and that the death penalty was being administered "arbitrarily and discriminatorily against the poor and outcast whose alleged victims are white" (Petition at 8), without conducting any evidentiary inquiry into whether those allegations were true. It held that Appellant could and should have proven at his trial or on his direct appeal that the jury in his case was actually affected and prejudiced by improper outside influences, without examining the record to see whether, as he claimed, it was impossible for him to establish those facts at trial. See Trans. 11/30/78 at 9. It accepted representations by counsel regarding the significance of the verdicts at trial (see Id. at 22) without looking into the whole record to determine whether, in fact, those verdicts had that significance. And it ruled that substantial claims of

constitutional rights violations were not available to Appellant, without determining from any record whether he had personally waived them or whether his counsel had in any previous proceeding been afforded the opportunity to assert them.

The kind of dismissal that the District Court entered in this case is specifically reserved by the rules of civil procedure for pleadings which on their face fail to state a cause of action. A ruling that necessarily goes beyond the face of the pleadings cannot be made in the manner in which the District Court acted.

Parties bringing a lawsuit proper on its face are entitled to an opportunity to present these necessary materials and arguments to the court before their case is dismissed. The District Court afforded Appellant no opportunity to present his evidence and arguments. Accordingly, the determinations made by the District Court were factually and legally wrong, both in the manner it reached them and in the result reached.

### POINT III

NEW DEVELOPMENTS OF CONSTITUTIONAL LAW WHICH ARE RETRO-ACTIVE TO PRIOR CASES CAN PROPERLY PROVIDE THE BASIS FOR HABEAS CORPUS RELIEF.

The position of the Respondent State of Utah below was that new constitutional claims may not be raised on habeas corpus unless "new issues of law or fact arise that were not known at the time of appeal." Memorandum in Support of Motion to Dismiss Amended Petition at 9. There was no dispute about the standard under existing Utah law. Trans. 11/30/78 at 6. One of the essential functions of the modern Writ is to raise newly emerged constitutional issues after the opportunity to raise them on appeal has passed. See Fay v. Noia, 372 U.S. 391 (1963). A mere failure to raise a point established by constitutional case law in an appeal cannot foreclose later reliance on that case law, unless the failure constitutes a waiver or the law is new and non-retroactive.

"[W]aiver affecting federal rights is a federal question," Fay v. Noia, supra at 372 U.S. 439, and under that law a constitutional waiver must be "an intentional relinquishment or abandonment of a known right or privilege." Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458, 464 (1938). A right not yet established by controlling case law can hardly be deemed "known" or "abandoned intentionally" by a lawyer's failure to foresee it. The course of

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