1979

# William Andrews v. Lawrence Morris : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

C

THIS COURT HAS PROPERLY LIMITED THE POST-CONVICTION WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS TO ITS COMMON LAW PURPOSES BY ENFORCING A WAIVER DOCTRINE THAT PROMOTES FINALITY IN THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM.

A review of the numerous Utah cases involving post-conviction writs of habeas corpus reveals that the Utah Supreme Court has repeatedly invoked what is essentially a waiver doctrine in regard to recognizable claims. A petitioner may not raise claims in a post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus that could or should have been raised on direct appeal. Brown v. Turner, 21 Utah 2d 96, 440 P.2d 968 (1968). This standard is imposed whether an appeal is or is not taken. Bryant v. Turner, 19 Utah 2d 284, 431 P.2d 121 (1967) (no appeal taken); Maguire v. Smith, 547 P.2d 697 (Utah 1976) (appeal taken). The types of claims that are permissible on a post-conviction writ are stated in Rammell v. Smith, 560 P.2d 1108 (Utah 1977):

[T]he writ has its purposes, including the providing of a remedy where it challenges the jurisdiction of the court rendering the judgment, or where the sentence imposed is one not authorized by law, or where it is of an entirely different character than that which the statute prescribes, so that a person is being held under an obviously illegal sentence and it would thus be unconscionable not to examine the issue.

560 P.2d at 1109.



The scope of the writ described in Rammell is somewhat broader than the common law grounds stated in Harlan v. McGourin, 218 U.S. 442 (1910): "Upon habeas corpus the court examines only the power and authority of the court to act, not the correctness of its conclusions." Id. at 448. If a state may restrict the scope of habeas corpus to its common law limits, a practice approved in Carter v. Illinois, supra, then it follows that Utah may permissibly expand the common law limits to the standard set forth in Rammell. Respondent would emphasize that Utah has properly limited the scope of post-conviction habeas corpus to issues involving (1) the jurisdiction of the trial court; (2) the validity of the sentence; or (3) "obvious illegality." Rammell, supra at 1109. The essential constitutional soundness of Utah's post-conviction writ of habeas corpus should not be obscured by the extensive argument in the instant case concerning the waiver doctrine.

An analysis of the habeas waiver doctrine in this case has been muddled by appellant's interjection of elements of collateral estoppel and res judicata. It is necessary to clear up any confusion by examining the exact nature of the concepts of waiver, collateral estoppel and res judicata.

Initially, it must be understood that res judicata has generally been held to be inapplicable in the area of habeas corpus. Fay v. Noia, 372 U.S. 391 (1963). The writ

lies to test proceedings so fundamentally lawless that imprisonment pursuant to them is void, not merely erroneous, so the application of res judicata would contravene the very nature of the writ.

Collateral estoppel and waiver are distinguished in Black's Law Dictionary, 4th Ed. Rev., at 650: "Waiver is voluntary surrender or relinquishment of some known right, benefit or advantage; estoppel is the inhibition to assert it." A party is generally precluded from relitigating an issue that has been decided adversely to him in a prior proceeding. In retrospectively examining the rights of a habeas corpus petitioner, this Court has not found the prisoner estopped from raising issues that could have been raised on appeal but were not. In that case, there has been no adverse decision on the issue. Rather, the position of this Court has been that a petitioner is found to have waived claims that could have been raised on appeal but were not. As stated above, a waiver typically involves an element of intent or knowledge of the giving up of the right. This Court has deemed claims that could have been raised on direct appeal as being within the knowledge of petitioner, supporting the finding of waiver. When the state has created the right of direct appeal of a criminal conviction, it is not unreasonable to enforce a waiver doctrine with respect to another state-created right, habeas corpus. Thus, respondent contends that Utah courts

that the waiver is being reasonably applied in post-conviction cases.

Appellant cites Fay v. Noia, 372 U.S. 391 (1963), as setting forth the proper guidelines for determining whether a petitioner has waived issues that he is attempting to raise in a petition for writ of habeas corpus. Several cases decided after Fay by the United States Supreme Court have severely undercut Fay's "deliberate waiver" doctrine and have left the test of waived issues in an uncertain state.

The most significant recent habeas corpus case decided by the United States Supreme Court is Wainwright v. Sykes, 433 U.S. 72 (1977). In Wainwright, petitioner Sykes was convicted of third degree murder in a Florida circuit court. At trial, testimony was admitted that allegedly violated Sykes' rights under Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436 (1966). However, no objection to the evidence was made at trial, as required by Florida's contemporaneous objection rule.<sup>3</sup> Sykes "apparently" did not raise the Miranda issue on direct appeal of his conviction. 433 U.S. at 75. Sykes subsequently filed three unsuccessful post-conviction petitions in Florida state courts which raised the Miranda issue for the first time.

---

<sup>3</sup> Florida Rule Crim. Proc. 3.190(i), cited in 433 U.S.

Sykes then sought habeas corpus relief in federal district court, where he raised the Miranda issue again. The United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida ruled, inter alia, that Sykes had not lost his right to raise the issue by failing to object at trial or on direct appeal. The court reasoned that only "exceptional circumstances" of "strategic decisions at trial" would effect a waiver of issues in later habeas corpus actions. The Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed, relying on the "deliberate bypass" rule in Fay v. Noia. The United States Supreme Court reversed, citing Davis v. United States, 411 U.S. 233 (1973), and Francis v. Henderson, 425 U.S. 536 (1976), as limiting Fay v. Noia, and concluding that a failure to comply with state procedural requirements would bar the raising of those issues for the first time on federal habeas corpus absent a showing of cause for the noncompliance and prejudice resulting from the state procedural waiver. The precise definition of the "cause" and "prejudice" standard was explicitly left open for future decisions, the court noting:

. . . [o]nly that it is narrower than the standard set forth in dicta in Fay v. Noia, 372 U.S. 391 (1963), which would make federal habeas review generally available to state convicts absent a knowing and deliberate waiver of the federal constitutional contention. It is the sweeping language of Fay v. Noia, going far beyond the facts of the case eliciting it, which we today reject.

433 U.S. at 87-88.

The Court lists its reasons for narrowing the "deliberate bypass" standard as including the valid function of the state procedural requirement itself, the contribution to finality in criminal litigation, the prevention of "sand-bagging" on the part of defense lawyers and the desire to make the state trial the "main event." Id. at 88-90. Appellant concedes the legitimacy of the deliberate bypass rule and finality in the criminal justice system at page 8 of his brief, where he states:

This does not mean that a prisoner may relitigate through post conviction proceedings the self same issues decided against him in his direct appeal, or that criminal defendants may bypass issues in appealing their convictions and hold them in reserve for post conviction proceedings.

While Wainwright deals with a federal habeas corpus case, respondent submits that the court's statements concerning waiver of issues are applicable to the instant case in particular and Utah habeas corpus proceedings in general.

Wainwright v. Sykes was applied in the manner urged by respondent in Spinkellink v. Wainwright, 578 F.2d 582 (5th Cir. 1978), cert. denied \_\_\_ U.S. \_\_\_ (March 26, 1979). Petitioner Spenkelink (spelled "Spinkellink" by the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals) failed to raise a claim of improper jury selection to the Florida Supreme Court on appeal of his 1973 conviction for first degree murder. (Spenkelink

was sentenced to death as a result of the conviction.) Spenkelnk's arguments in his petition for federal habeas corpus relief were largely based upon United States Supreme Court cases decided after his appeal had been taken, an obvious similarity to the instant case. Despite Spenkelnk's arguments, the Fifth Circuit clearly indicated that Wainwright v. Sykes would seem to preclude the raising of issues waived in a state proceeding. (The Florida Supreme Court had held the claim waived in Spenkelink v. State, 350 So.2d 85 (Fla. 1977).) The Fifth Circuit proceeded to discuss Spenkelnk's claims as a matter of law, but the citation of Wainwright v. Sykes is a clear indication of Wainwright's broad applicability, extending even to a death penalty case.

The state procedural ground at issue in the instant case is the failure to raise certain issues on direct appeal from the conviction. As with the Florida contemporaneous objection rule in Wainwright, strict adherence to the Utah habeas corpus waiver doctrine furthers several legitimate state interests. (See: Henry v. Mississippi, 379 U.S. 443 (1965).) The refusal to hear issues on habeas corpus petitions that could or should have been raised on direct appeal (1) furthers finality in the criminal justice system, (2) prevents "sandbagging" on the part of defense lawyers, (3) serves to make the direct appeal more of a "main event." These same considerations were persuasive to the Wainwright Court.

Respondent urges this Court to consider these factors in addition to the freedom of this state to fashion its own remedy, argued above, and find Utah's habeas corpus waiver doctrine a valid policy in furtherance of a legitimate state interest.

D

APPELLANT HAS FAILED TO MEET  
HIS BURDEN OF SHOWING THAT THE  
INSTANT PETITION INVOLVES SUCH  
UNFAIRNESS THAT IT WOULD BE  
UNCONSCIONABLE NOT TO EXAMINE  
THE CLAIMS RAISED.

In his concurring opinion in Wainwright v. Sykes, supra, Justice White states, "I do agree that it is the burden of the habeas corpus petitioner to negative deliberate bypass and explain his failure to object." Id. at 99. Extending this statement to the instant case, respondent submits that appellant has the burden of showing why relief should be granted in the instant case. That is, he must show why the issues raised in his petition for writ of habeas corpus could not have been raised on appeal. Appellant has failed to make such a showing.

Appellant raised the following claims in his Third District Court petition: (the paragraph numbers refer to the actual numbers of his petition below which is part of the record before this Court).

11A. predisposition of jury and failure of trial judge to grant various motions.

12. unconstitutionality of death sentence for various reasons.

12A. sentencing statute permits arbitrary and discretionary imposition of death penalty; inadequate guidelines for sentencing authority.

12A(1). unguided and unfettered discretion in sentencing authority.

12A(1)(a). jury in determining sentence needed no other facts than those brought out in guilt phase.

12A(1)(b). jury was required to state only one of two possible sentences.

12A(2). no requirement of finding or pleading of aggravating circumstance.

12A(2)(a). state not required to plead aggravating circumstance.

12A(2)(b). no instruction to jury of unanimity.

12A(2)(c). jury not required to specify which aggravating circumstance it relied on.

12A(3). consideration of unspecified aggravating and mitigating circumstances.

12A(3)(a). evidence of irrelevant past misconduct admitted.

12A(3)(b). jury not required to specify its

finding on mitigating circumstances or aggravating circumstance



12A(3)(c). trial court description of alternate sentences.

12A(3)(d). prosecutor's urging of death penalty.

12A(4). absence of standards for balancing aggravating and mitigating factors.

12A(4)(a). jury not given standards for weighing factors.

12A(4)(b). jury not required to specify weight given to various factors.

12A(4)(c). inappropriate burden of proof in sentencing phase.

12A(4)(d). jury not informed of burden of proof it should look for.

12A(5). no provision for appellate or other review.

12A(5)(a). appellate review based only on cases actually appealed.

12A(5)(b). failure of this Court to specifically review findings of aggravating or mitigating circumstances.

12A(5)(c). failure of this Court to analyze presence of passion or prejudice.

12A(5)(d). failure of this Court to compare sentences.

12B. arbitrary and discriminatory pattern and practice of imposition of death penalty since 1973.

12C. no finding that petitioner personally took any lives or intended to do so.

12D. purposeless infliction of pain by hanging or shooting; infliction of psychological torture.

The petitioner in a habeas corpus proceeding has the burden of proving the grounds upon which he relies for his release by providing evidence that is clear and convincing. McGuffey v. Turner, 18 Utah 2d 354, 358, 423 P.2d 166, 169 (1967). Appellant has not shown any evidence to support the above-enumerated claims that even approaches a clear and convincing standard. Because such a showing has not been made, appellant failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted. Appellant argues that he did not have an opportunity to present such evidence. That is not the case. Judge Sawaya afforded appellant an opportunity to provide support for his claims in the hearing on respondent's motion to dismiss. Appellant did not make such a showing and thus failed to meet his burden. Moreover, each issue was of such a nature that it could properly be disposed of as a matter of law.

Judge Henry J. Friendly in his article, Is Innocence Irrelevant? Collateral Attack on Criminal Judgments, 38 U. Chi. L. Rev. 142, 155-156 (1970), has concluded that habeas corpus should not be available upon a mere open assertion that a "constitutional" right has been denied. Of course, non-constitutional claims that

could have been raised on appeal are clearly waived. Wolff v. Rice, 428 U.S. 467 (1976). Appellant's naked assertions of "unconscionability" and the "unjustifiable" conduct of Judge James S. Sawaya in this case are not substantial enough to merit consideration.

Appellant cites Rammell v. Smith, *supra*, (claim of improper sentence), Horne v. Turner, 29 Utah 2d 175, 506 P.2d 1268 (1973), (claim of involuntary guilty plea), Zumbrunnen v. Turner, 27 Utah 2d 428, 497 P.2d 34 (1972) (claims of involuntary guilty plea and ineffective assistance of counsel), Webster v. Jones, 587 P.2d 528 (Utah 1978), (claim of denial of right to counsel), to indicate the willingness of this Court to entertain exceptional claims. In each of the four cases, this Court held that the waiver doctrine applied and refused to grant relief in any of the cases. Contrary to appellant's assertion at page 9 of his brief, the dicta in the cases concerns the instances in which the writ will be granted, not the waiver doctrine and the error of attempting to use habeas as a substitute for appeal.

Respondent submits that the claims in the instant case do not merit consideration in a writ of habeas corpus. If this Court disagrees, it should proceed to a determination on the merits of the case

immediately. A remand of the case is not warranted as requested by appellant. Pursuant to the language in Rammell, supra and other cases, this Court will decide issues raised in otherwise defective petitions if it so chooses. The instant case is one involving protracted litigation and a high degree of public concern. The interests of justice would best be served by a decision from this Court if it should be determined that the waiver doctrine is not a bar to appellant's claims.

Appellant repeatedly protests that he is being "forced" into federal court by the operation of Utah's habeas corpus waiver doctrine. Respondent submits that rather than "forcing" petitioners into federal court for a hearing on their claims, Utah is instead properly enforcing a waiver doctrine that is consistent with the federal trend announced in Wainwright v. Sykes, supra. The waiver doctrine also furthers the legitimate (acknowledged as such by appellant) state interests in finality and the integrity of the judicial process. Utah's waiver doctrine will not cause undue friction with the federal courts (resulting from a federal hearing on a claim deemed waived by state courts) because federal courts, following Wainwright, will lend increasing credence to a state court's enforcement of a procedural waiver.

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